
 - 1 - 

 

MINUTES 

VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

September 14, 2016 (Special Meeting) 

Memorial Hall – Memorial Building, 19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale 

5:00 P.M. 

             

Chairman Bohnen called the special meeting of the Historic Preservation Commission 

(HPC) to order at 5:00 p.m. on September 14, 2016 in Memorial Hall in the Memorial 

Building, 19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale IL. 

 

Present:   Chairman Bohnen, Commissioner Gonzalez and Commissioner D’Arco, 

Absent:   Tom Willet 

Also Present: Chan Yu, Village Planner 

 

Minutes 

 

Chairman Bohnen introduced the minutes from the June 23, 2016 meeting. Chairman 

Bohnen asked for a motion to approve the minutes. Commissioner Gonzalez made a motion 

and Commissioner D’Arco seconded.  The motion passed unanimously.   

   

Public Hearing – Recommendations forwarded to the next Board of Trustees 

meeting. All those wishing to provide public testimony must be sworn in, after 

the applicant makes their presentation, and will be recognized by the Chair to 

speak. 

 

Case HPC-01-2016 – 306 S. Garfield Avenue AND 26 E. 3rd Street Local Landmark 

Application. The applicant is nominating the home at 306 S. Garfield Avenue AND 

the coach house at 26 E. 3rd Street for designation of a Landmark. 

 

(Please see the attached transcript for Case HPC-01-2016 included as part of this record) 

 

Chairman Bohnen introduced the application as a public hearing item, and gave a 

summary of the Landmark request and review process. He explained that the HPC serves 

as an advisory committee to the Board of Trustees for the final approval. Ms. Kathy 

Cummings, an architectural historian representing the applicant, is sworn in and presents 

a history of the home. She reviewed the architect of the home (George Washington Maher), 

the original homeowners and their community involvement in Hinsdale, and historical 

elements of the subject properties.  

 

During the public comment period of the hearing, a neighbor asked about the wall attached 

to the coach house. A Commissioner requested to take a look at it. So in agreement with the 

applicant, the HPC formally continued the application for the October 12, HPC Special 

Meeting at 6 PM, to visit the subject property. 

 

 

Approved 

Gonzalez / Bohnen 



Historic Preservation Commission 

September 14, 2016 

 

Public Meeting – Certificate of Appropriateness 

 

Case HPC-02-2016 – 120 S. Elm Street - Proposed additions to finish the attic area, 

add second floor master suite over the existing 2-car garage, using all period 

appropriate style and designs. The applicant is also proposing to restore a cupola 

in the attic original to the home. 
 

Chairman Bohnen introduced the next item on the agenda and invited the applicant to 

present. 

 

Mr. Peter Coules, attorney representing the applicant for 120 S. Elm Street, introduced 

himself and summarized the construction plan. He reviewed that the homeowners, the 

Chang’s, have already submitted full building permit plans that are Code compliant and 

approved.  To that end, the applicant will not need any variations. He also explained that 

they will not be removing anything from the home, and instead, adding to it to live in. Mr. 

Coules gave a brief history of the home (classical revival style), that used to be located at 

244 E. First Street, and reviewed that a garage was constructed in the 1950’s that does not 

make sense architecturally. Thus, the applicant hired an architect to design a roof line to 

the new garage dormer that matches the revival style roof of the home (1893 period). From 

the street, the only visible changes are the dormer and cupola. The materials he added, 

include (for example) cedar, and will match the style of the home. He also added there will 

be additional green space because the applicant is removing the swimming pool on the 

property. 

 

Chairman Bohnen pointed out that this home is a Local Landmark and in the Historic 

District; and the only concern he has is the change visible from the street.  

 

Mr. Peter Coules responded that’s why the Chang’s hired an architect to design the dormer 

roof to match the historic home’s roof. 

 

Chairman Bohnen added that he believes anyone would agree the current garage is not in 

keeping or pleasing to the home. However, the new addition will get rid of a flat roof and 

feature a new roof that is more in line to the rest of the home and not destroy the symmetry 

of the house. 

 

Richard Olsen, the architect for the application, reviewed that the Chang’s worked with the 

historical society for information in regards to the garage. Mr. Olsen explained that they 

designed the new roof with a similar roof pitch and to design the dormer with the center of 

the home which reflects a classical revival style.   

 

Chairman Bohnen expressed that he is content with the dormer, but is concerned about 

how the dormer may negatively affect natural lighting due to potentially blocking sunlight. 

To that end, he’d rather have it installed per the plan versus the front of the house. 

 

Richard Olsen agreed and responded that’s exactly where he’d put the dormer.  

 



Historic Preservation Commission 

September 14, 2016 

 

Chairman Bohnen asked if the driveway to a new third garage presented at another 

meeting is still planned.  

 

Richard Olsen and Peter Coules said that plan has been abandoned.  

 

Chairman Bohnen replied that’s good. 

 

Commissioner Gonzalez asked if they have any renderings or pictures of the design. 

 

Richard Olsen showed large plans to Commissioner Gonzalez. After reviewing, 

Commissioner Gonzalez commented, well done. 

 

Commissioner D’Arco asked what the timeframe is for the project. 

 

Mr. Chang replied/gestured as soon as possible. Mr. Coules added they are living there so 

as soon as possible. 

 

Chairman Bohnen asked the Commission if they had any further questions. With none, he 

asked for a motion to approve the application. Commissioner Gonzalez made a motion for 

approval, Commissioner D’Arco seconded the motion, and the motion passed unanimously 

(3 Ayes and 1 absent). 

 

Chairman Bohnen thanked the applicants for being so sensitive to the architecture, the 

tone of the Village and look forward to being your neighbors. 

 

Discussion 

 

2016 Preservation Award to the Village of Hinsdale for the Oak Street Bridge and 

First Street Brick pavement between Elm Street and Park Avenue. 

 

Chairman Bohnen introduced this discussion as having to do with previous discussions in 

regards to presenting an award to the Village of Hinsdale, to honor the sensitive 

architectural endeavor of rebuilding the bridge and First Street. He stated that he’d like to 

carry this discussion over to the next meeting. He noted that he asked the Hinsdalean to do 

some photography work and it’s his hope to be able to present awards at the next meeting. 

Both projects Chairman Bohnen added, were completed in a sensible, sensitive way, and in 

keeping to the tone of the historic village we enjoy. (Past historic awards discussion ensued) 

 

Adjournment 

With no additional discussion, Commissioner Bohnen asked for a motion to adjourn.  

Commissioner Gonzalez made the motion and Commissioner D’Arco seconded. The meeting 

was adjourned at 6:39p.m. on September 14, 2016. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

, Chan Yu, Village Planner 



HPC-01-2016 / 306 S. Garfield Ave. Attachment to HPC 09/14/16 Minutes 



HPC-01-2016 / 306 S. Garfield Ave. Attachment to HPC 09/14/16 Minutes 



HPC-01-2016 / 306 S. Garfield Ave. Attachment to HPC 09/14/16 Minutes 



HPC-01-2016 / 306 S. Garfield Ave. Attachment to HPC 09/14/16 Minutes 



HPC-01-2016 / 306 S. Garfield Ave. Attachment to HPC 09/14/16 Minutes 



HPC-01-2016 / 306 S. Garfield Ave. Attachment to HPC 09/14/16 Minutes 



HPC-01-2016 / 306 S. Garfield Ave. Attachment to HPC 09/14/16 Minutes 



HPC-01-2016 / 306 S. Garfield Ave. Attachment to HPC 09/14/16 Minutes 



HPC-01-2016 / 306 S. Garfield Ave. Attachment to HPC 09/14/16 Minutes 



HPC-01-2016 / 306 S. Garfield Ave. Attachment to HPC 09/14/16 Minutes 



HPC-01-2016 / 306 S. Garfield Ave. Attachment to HPC 09/14/16 Minutes 




